AGENDA
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, APRIL 03, 2023
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET

Call to Order by the Mayor
Roll Call
Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of Minutes
1. Regular meeting of March 20, 2023.
Agenda Revisions
Special Presentations

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City
business.)

Staff Updates
Special Order of Business

2. Public hearing on the proposed maximum levy for affected property tax levies for FY2024.
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published March 21, 2023)
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk.
c¢) Staff comments.
d) Public comments.

e) Resolution approving and adopting the maximum levy for affected property tax levies for FY2024.

|0

Public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative
to conditional use for adaptive reuse of defunct institutional buildings.

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 03/24/2023)
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk.

c¢) Staff comments.

d) Public comments.

e) Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to
conditional use for adaptive reuse of defunct institutional buildings, upon its first consideration.

Old Business

Page 1 of 3




B

Pass Ordinance #3025, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to
establishing procedures for Planning & Zoning Commission review and City Council approval of site
plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), upon its second consideration. (5 aye votes
required due to denial by the Planning & Zoning Commission)

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)

5,

|

|~

|

|©

Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of March 20, 2023 relative to the
following items:

a) Review snow removal practices and policies.

b) Code Enforcement — private snow removal code revisions discussion.

Approve the following proclamations:

a) Recognizing April 2023 as Fair Housing Month.

b) Recognizing April 26, 2023 as Administrative Professionals Day.
¢) Recognizing May 2023 as Low Mow May.

Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of February 2023.

Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:
a) Hy-Vee Fast & Fresh, 6527 University Avenue.
b) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue.

Approve the following Order Accepting Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreements with the following
establishments for first tobacco violations:

a) National Cigar Store, d/b/a Hill Street News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street.

b) Gracious Food, LLC, d/b/a King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street.

¢) Kram Company, Inc., d/b/a The Landmark, 107 Main Street.

Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses:

a) Luxe Nail Bar, 5907 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal.

b) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal.

¢) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street — Plaza, Special Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service —
temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (May 26, June 16-17, June 23-24, and July 21-22,
2023)

d) Happy’'s Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service
— 14 day permit.

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered

separately.)
11.

12.

Resolution Calendar with items considered separately.

Resolution approving the recommendation of the Director of Public Safety Services and City
Administrator relative to the appointment of an Acting Fire Chief.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of five Participation Agreements involving Allergan,
CVS, Teva, Walgreens and Walmart relative to a national opioid settlement.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Contract Amendment #1 to the Linen Services
Agreement with Aramark Uniform Services.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service Order with USCC Services, LLC
(UScellular) relative to providing cellular service for the City.

Resolution approving and accepting a Warranty Deed, in conjunction with the expansion of the West
Viking Road Industrial Park.

Resolution approving and accepting two Warranty Deeds, in conjunction with the Main Street
Reconstruction Project.

Page 2 of 3




Resolution approving and accepting five Warranty Deeds, in conjunction with the Cedar Heights
Drive Reconstruction Project.

Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Municipal Pipe Tool Company LLC for
the 2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project.

Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the 2023
Street Construction Project.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Snyder &
Associates for design services relative to the West Viking Road Industrial Park Expansion Phase II.

Resolution approving the preliminary plat of Hidden Pines.

Resolution approving and accepting a Public Sanitary Sewer Easement, in conjunction with the
preliminary plat of Hidden Pines.

Resolution setting April 17, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the proposed FY2024 Budget for
the City of Cedar Falls.

Resolution setting April 17, 2023 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into a proposed
Purchase, Sale and Development Agreement, and to consider conveyance of certain city-owned real
estate to CF Storage, LLC.

Resolution receiving and filing, and setting April 17, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Ashworth Drive Roadway
Expansion Project.

Resolution setting April 17, 2023 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter
26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to signage for Civic/Institutional Uses in the
Downtown Character District (CD-DT).

Resolution setting April 17, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning from A-1,
Agricultural District to R-1, Residence District approximately 3 acres of property located west of the
Hudson Road & Ashworth Drive intersection, f/n/a 4919 Hudson Road.

Resolution setting April 17, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning from A-1,
Agricultural District to R-2, Residence District approximately 14 acres of property located north of
Black Hawk Park Addition and west of Cypress Avenue.

Allow Bills and Claims

30.

Allow Bills and Claims for April 3, 2023.

Council Updates and Announcements

Council Referrals

Adjournment

Page 3 of 3




54200 -

54201 -

54202 -

54203 -

54204 -

54205 -

CITY HALL
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, MARCH 20, 2023
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, met in Regular Session,
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member
thereof, at 7:04 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBubhr,
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Green led the
Pledge of Allegiance.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Schultz that the minutes of the
Regular Meeting of March 6, 2023 be approved as presented and ordered of
record. Motion carried unanimously.

Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, commented on the need for ADA compliant
restrooms downtown.

Kathryn Delau, 2214 Coventry Lane, expressed concerns with neighboring
nuisance property and requested more aggressive means of abatement.

Forrest Dawkins, 2323 Yorkshire Drive, echoed the previous speakers concerns
and agreed that it is a dangerous situation.

Community Development Director Sheetz and Building Official Castle responded
that the nuisance property is under contract to be purchased.

Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck provided an update on the
budget process and issues with publication of the notice causing delays in the
process.

Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of March 10,
2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments
to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Planning & Zoning
Commission review of site plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT). It
was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that the proof of publication of
notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously.

The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the
proposed amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planning &
Community Services Manager Howard provided a brief summary of the proposed
amendments. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the
proposed amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to
the next order of business.

Following comments by Mayor Green, it was moved by deBuhr and seconded by
Ganfield that Ordinance #3025, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of
Ordinances relative to establishing procedures for Planning & Zoning

Iltem 1.




54206 -

54207 -

54208 -

542009 -

54210 -

-2-

Commission review and City Council approval of site plans in the Downtown
Character District (CD-DT), be passed upon its first consideration. Following
comments and questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield,
Dunn, Sires and Schultz, and Mayor Green, and responses by Planning &
Community Services Manager Howard and City Attorney Rogers, the Mayor put
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires. Nay:
Schultz, Dunn. Motion carried.

Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of March 10,
2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments
to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to eliminating the
shared parking requirement in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT). It was
then moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of
notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously.

The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the
proposed amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planning &
Community Services Manager Howard provided a brief summary of the proposed
amendments. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the
proposed amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to
the next order of business.

It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that an ordinance amending
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to eliminating the shared
parking requirement in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), be passed
upon its first consideration. Following comments and questions by
Councilmembers Harding, deBuhr, Kruse, Sires and Ganfield, and Mayor Green,
it was moved by Kruse that if shared parking is denied, residential parking

requirements be increased to one bedroom. Mayor called the motion out of order.

The Mayor then put the question on the original motion and upon call of the roll,
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Ganfield, Sires. Nay:
Schultz, Kruse, Harding, Dunn. Motion failed.

Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of March 10,
2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments
to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to increasing
residential parking requirements in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT) to
one parking space per bedroom. It was then moved by Ganfield and seconded
by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and
placed on file. Motion carried unanimously.

The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the
proposed amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planning &
Community Services Manager Howard provided a brief summary of the proposed
amendments. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the
proposed amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to

Iltem 1.




54211 -

54212 -

54213 -

the next order of business.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Schultz that an ordinance amending
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to increasing residential
parking requirements in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT) to one parking
space per bedroom, be passed upon its first consideration. Following comments
and questions by Councilmembers Kruse, deBuhr, Schultz and Dunn, and
responses by Planning & Community Services Manager Howard, the Mayor put
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, deBuhr, Sires. Nay: Schultz, Harding,
Ganfield, Dunn. Motion failed.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that the following items on the
Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved:

Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of March 6, 2023
relative to the following items:

a) FY2024 Budget.

b) Economic Development Incentives.

Approve a proclamation recognizing March 20, 2023 as Robotics week.

Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to
the certified list for the position of Assistant Equipment Mechanic in the Public
Works Department.

Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreement with The
Music Station, a/k/a Mini Mart, 1420 West 1st Street, for a first tobacco violation.

Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses:

a) Barn Happy, 11310 University Avenue, Special Class B retail native wine -
renewal.

b) Chilitos Mexican Bar and Grill, 1704 West 1st Street, Class C retail alcohol -
renewal.

c¢) Social House, 2208 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service -
renewal.

d) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, Class E retail alcohol — renewal.

e) The Wine Shop, 305 Main Street, Special Class C retail alcohol — adding
outdoor service.

f) Godfather's Pizza, 1621 West 1st Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - new.
g) Hurling Hatchet, 100 East 2nd Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - new.

Motion carried unanimously.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that the following resolutions
be introduced and adopted:

Resolution #23,095, authorizing the Mayor’s appointment and two designated
alternates to the Black Hawk County Metropolitan Area Transportation
Organization (MPO) Policy Board.

Iltem 1.




54214 -

-4 -

Resolution #23,096, approving payment, and approving and accepting Release
and Settlement Agreements with respect to the City’s issuance on August 31,
2022, of General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022, maturing annually
on June 1, 2024 through June 1, 2035, and authorizing and directing the Mayor
and City Clerk to execute said Release and Settlement Agreements on behalf of
the City, as follows:

a) Investor “A” Maturity 2029 & 2030: $19,029.55

b) Investor “B” Maturity 2031 & 2032: $22,470.25

c) Investor “C” Maturity 2033 & 2034: $22,342.10

d) Investor “D” Maturity 2035: $22,497.75

Resolution #23,097, approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for demo
and discovery with Peters Construction Corp. relative to the Pheasant Ridge Golf
Course Pro Shop.

Resolution #23,098, approving a Mixed Use (MU) Zoning District site plan for a
triplex to be located on Lot 1, Pinnacle Ridge First Addition.

Resolution #23,099, approving the final plat of West Viking Road Industrial Park
Phase VI.

Resolution #23,100, approving and accepting a Temporary Construction
Easement, in conjunction with the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction
Project.

Resolution #23,101, approving and authorizing execution of a Change of Work
Order to the Contract with Peterson Contractors, Inc. relative to West Viking
Road Industrial Park Project Phase VI.

Resolution #23,102, receiving and filing bids, and approving and accepting the
bid of Municipal Pipe Tool Company LLC, in the amount of $253,025.25, being
the lowest bid received for the 2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project.

Resolution #23,103, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting
the bid of Peterson Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $2,664,055.20, being the
lowest bid received for the 2023 Street Construction Project.

Resolution #23,104, setting April 3, 2023 as the date of public hearing on
proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative
to adaptive reuse of defunct institutional buildings.

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,095 through #23,104 duly
passed and adopted.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,105,
approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Public Services with
Cedar Valley Youth Soccer Association relative to providing opportunities for
youth soccer, be adopted. Following comments by Cedar Valley Soccer Club

Iltem 1.




54215 -

54216 -

54217 -

54218 -

54219 -

-5-

President Tom Herzmann, 1122 West 10th Street, Councilmember Sires and
Mayor Green, the Mayor put the question on the motion, and upon call of the roll,
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse,
Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then
declared Resolution #23,105 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #23,106,
setting April 3, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the maximum levy rate, be
adopted. Following a comment by Councilmember Kruse, question by
Councilmember Ganfield, and response by Finance & Business Operations
Director Rodenbeck, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of
the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr,
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor
then declared Resolution #23,106 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Ganfield that the bills and claims of
March 20, 2023 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires,
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr to refer to the Planning &
Zoning Commission to remove the ability of street parking to be considered as
required shared parking for developments. Following a comment by
Councilmember Kruse, the motion carried 5-2, with Harding and Dunn voting
Nay.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to refer to Committee of the
Whole discussion of pricing of lots in the Industrial Park. Motion carried 6-1, with
Dunn voting Nay.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to adjourn to Executive
Session for the annual discussion of the City Administrator’s performance
pursuant to lowa Code Section 21.5(1)(i) and City Code Section 2-217. Upon call
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr,
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried.

The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:50 P.M.
Mayor Green reconvened the Council meeting at 10:22 P.M.

It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that the meeting be adjourned
at 10:23 P.M. Motion carried unanimously.

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

Iltem 1.




Item 2.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Mayor Green and City Council Members

Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations
DATE: March 27, 2023
SUBJECT: FY2024 Budget

Attached is the required form giving notice of the hearing to set the maximum levy and
the corresponding resolution.

You may recall that | noted in my previous presentation that unfortunately this new state
notice does not include the total levy rate, it only has certain levies. Therefore, this is
not the true picture of the total levy rate. For example, the total rate being proposed for
the FY24 Budget is $11.74; however, this form only shows $10.81. You will note that
the form does show an overall tax increase of .72%. However, when you take the
effects of the revaluation and the rollback, different classes of properties will see
different changes as follows:

Residential — 2.98% increase

Commercial/Residential — 2.00% increase

Multi-Residential — 12.56% decrease

As discussed in the budget presentation, this illustrates the tax burden shift that the
rollback causes.

A reminder that this is setting the maximum levy, the City Council can continue to make
reductions for the final budget adoption. If you have any questions about the budget or
the budget process, please feel free to contact me.




NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - CITY OF CEDAR FALLS - PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX LEVY

Fiscal Year July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

Item 2.

The City Council will conduct a public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year City property tax levy as follows:

Meeting Date: 4/3/2023 Meeting Time:

07:00 PM Meeting Location:

Cedar Falls City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA

At the public hearing any resident or taxpayer may present objections to, or arguments in favor of the proposed tax levy. After adoption of the proposed tax levy, the City

City Website (if available)
cedarfalls.com

Council will publish notice and hold a hearing on the proposed city budget.

City Telephone Number
(319) 273-8600

Current Year Certified Budget Year Effective Budget Year Proposed Maximum | Annual %
Property Tax 2022 - 2023 Property Tax 2023 - 2024 Property Tax 2023 - 2024 CHG
Regular Taxable Valuation 2,064,620,691 2,068,909,898 2,068,909,898
Tax Levies:
Regular General 16,723,428 16,723,428 16,758,170
Contract for Use of Bridge 0
Opr & Maint Publicly Owned Transit 456,100 456,100 474,340
Rent, Ins. Maint. Of Non-Owned Civ. Ctr. 0
Opr & Maint of City-Owned Civic Center 0
Planning a Sanitary Disposal Project 0
Liability, Property & Self-Insurance Costs 249,340 249,340 312,770
Support of Local Emer. Mgmt. Commission 576,590 576,590 1,104,190
Emergency 0
Police & Fire Retirement 1,136,090 1,136,090 1,123,780
FICA & IPERS 1,593,540 1,593,540 1,639,300
Other Employee Benefits 1,473,770 1,473,770 957,840
Total Tax Levy 22,208,858 22,208,858 22,370,390 0.72
Tax Rate 10.75687 10.73457 10.81265

Explanation of significant increases in the budget:

Significant increases to the budget are caused by staffing costs, including negotiated salary and benefit increases. Also, consolidated dispatch costs increased significantly

due to the formula being changed.

If applicable, the above notice also available online at:

cedarfalls.com; https://www.facebook.com/citycf; https://twitter.com/CityCF; https://wwww.instagram.com/cedar_falls_iowa/

*Total city tax rate will also include voted general fund levy, debt service levy, and capital improvement reserve levy.
**Budget year effective property tax rate is the rate that would be assessed for these levies if the dollars requested is not changed in the coming budget year

10




Item 2.

11




RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE FY2024
MAXIMUM PROPERY TAX DOLLARS

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls has considered the
proposed FY2024 city maximum property tax dollars for the affected levy total, and

WHEREAS, a notice concerning the proposed city maximum property tax dollars
was published as required and posted on the city website and social media accounts,

and

WHEREAS, as required by law, a public hearing concerning the proposed city
maximum property tax dollars was held by the City Council on April 3, 2023.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa that the maximum property tax dollars for the affected tax levies for FY2024 shall
not exceed $22,370,390.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa, that the Maximum Property Tax dollars requested in the total maximum levy for
affected property tax levies for FY2024 represents less than 102% from the Maximum

Property Tax dollars requested for FY2023.

ADOPTED this 3 day of April, 2023 with the following vote:

Schultz deBuhr Kruse
Harding Ganfield
Sires Dunn

Robert M. Green, Mayor
ATTEST:

Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

Item 2.

12




Item 3.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Phone: 319-273-8600

Fax: 319-273-8610

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM
Planning & Community Services Division

TO: Mayor Robert M Green and City Council
FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner |
DATE:  April 3, 2023
SUBJECT: Zoning Code Text Amendment (TA22-005) — Setting of Public Hearing

REQUEST: Zoning Text Amendment - Add hair salon as potential conditional use of
defunct institutional buildings

PETITIONER: Chad Welsh, Owner of 209 Walnut (former Church)

LOCATION: Code change would be applicable to any defunct institutional building

BACKGROUND

We received a request for an amendment to the zoning code to add hair salons to the list of
uses allowed for consideration as a conditional use of a defunct institutional building. The
applicant is requesting this change because they would like to have an opportunity to apply to
the Board of Adjustment for a conditional use to repurpose the church building they own at 209
Walnut Street for use as a hair salon. Personal service uses such as a salon are not currently
listed as a qualifying use for consideration under this provision of the zoning code.

ANALYSIS

The following are the current uses eligible for consideration by the Board of Adjustment if an
owner of a church building would like to adaptively reuse their building as provided for in Section
26-140 of the Zoning Code, adopted in 2021

e Hospitality-oriented uses such as: retreat facilities, convention centers, guesthouses,
meeting halls, and event facilities;

e Conversion to a multi-unit dwelling in a zone where such use is not otherwise allowed or
where the proposed number of units exceeds the number otherwise allowed in the zone;

e Community service uses such as: libraries, museums, senior centers, community
centers, neighborhood centers, day care facilities, youth club facilities, social service
facilities, and vocational training facilities for the physically or mentally disabled;

13




Item 3.

e Specialized educational facilities such as: music schools, dramatic schools, dance
studios, martial arts studios, language schools, and short-term examination preparatory
schools;

e Professional office uses such as: accountants, lawyers, architects, or similar.

When drafting the original code provision, staff considered other uses that would be similar to
the community assembly-type activity level of a church, such as the hospitality and community
service uses listed above. Since these buildings often have large interior spaces that might be
conducive to classrooms, we included specialized educational uses as an option. There has
been at least one church in the community that has successfully been converted to apartments
(in an R-4 zone; not conditional use), so multi-unit dwellings were listed as a possibility.
Professional office uses are typically fairly low impact uses, so were included as well. Staff felt
that this list was liberal enough to be useful but limited enough to be appropriate for residential
zones. The applicant maintains that it is not liberal enough since some neighborhoods may be in
favor of lighter retail or personal service uses and that determination can be made by the Board
of Adjustment with any neighborhood input received. With that in mind, below is a breakdown of
pros and cons of changing the code to allow personal service uses, such as a hair salon to be
considered.

Pros Cons

e The traffic and activity of a hair salon or e Some retail sales and service uses may
similar personal service use may be less be considered more controversial in
imposing to a neighborhood than a church residential neighborhoods than the other
or some of the other community assembly uses listed in the conditional use code
uses listed. provision.

e Hair salons and other similar personal e The conditional use code provision has not
services are common home occupations been in effect very long. Therefore, the
and may not be any more obtrusive than a Board of Adjustment has yet to review a
professional office use. conditional use case and develop their

e Adding it to the list in City code does not experience in considering this kind of land
grant any automatic right to a use, as the use matter.

Board of Adjustment can reject any e Text amendments have application across
proposal if it is not a good fit for the the community for any defunct institutional
subject property. site, so will not just apply to the property

¢ Neighbors are notified and given owned by the applicant.
opportunity to oppose or provide input to e Expanding the list could spur further
the Board of Adjustment. requests for amendments to allow a

e Conditions can be imposed by the Board broader range of uses.
of Adjustment to make a use better fit for e There were concerns about the conditional
the neighborhood context, such as limiting use code provision when initially
the hours of operation, exterior lighting, considered and adopted. Perhaps the
and signage. concept should be tested before it is

e A broader use list can provide greater expanded any further.
utility of the conditional use code e With broader use considerations,
provision, particularly for smaller neighborhood residents close to churches
properties that may not be able to may need to be more vigilant and be
accommodate the traffic and activities for willing to provide input when a re-use is
a community assembly-type use. considered.

The pros and cons to expanding the uses are fairly balanced as there are near-equal benefits,

14




Item 3.

risks, and safeguards. As such, there is not a clear answer as to whether some retail services
should be added to the conditional use provision or not. However, staff feels that the current
code as constituted provides plenty of appropriate options for consideration when a church or
other institutional use becomes vacant. It may be wise to hold off on expanding the uses until
the provision is more tested.

PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT

If the Commission is inclined to recommend approval of this request, staff suggests the following
wording be added to Section 26-140(e)(1)a. of the Zoning Code, which lists the use category,
but then restricts it so that only those uses specifically listed would be allowed for consideration.

6. Personal service uses limited to salons, shoe repair, tailoring services, therapy-based
services, and photographic studios.

These uses are primarily appointment-based services used by all ages, and thus may be more
appropriate in neighborhood contexts than other retail or service uses that have more
unpredictable levels of activity. In addition, staff believes that, if approved, this limited approach
would accomplish the applicant’s objective without adding a seemingly arbitrary salon use on its
own. While staff does not fully support this text amendment, if it is adopted the Board of
Adjustment may reject any conditional use proposal or impose any reasonable conditions based
on neighborhood input.

Notice of public hearing at the Planning and Zoning Commission was published in the WCF
Courier twice: once on February 15, 2023 and then again on March 2, 2023. This was discussed
and voted on at their March 8, 2023 meeting.

Notice of Public Hearing at Council was published in the WCF Courier on March 24, 2023.

RECOMMENDATION

At the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on March 8, 2023, the Commission voted (5
ayes to 1 nay) to recommend approval of amendments to add limited personal service uses to
the list of eligible conditional uses of defunct institutional buildings as outlined in the staff report
above.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION

Discussion The first item of business was a zoning text amendment to expand a list of potential

2/8/2023 conditional uses of defunct institutional buildings. Chair Lynch introduced the item and
Mr. Sevy provided background information. He explained that a request was received for
a zoning text amendment that would allow the addition of hair salons to the list of eligible
uses in such buildings. He discussed current uses that are eligible for consideration and
explained that salons would not fall under the professional office uses that are allowed.
They are considered to be a personal service use. Mr. Sevy provided the pros and cons
to allowing this kind of business to operate in such buildings. The proposed text
amendment would read “Personal service uses limited to hair salons, shoe repair,
tailoring services, therapy-based services and photographic studios.” These uses are
primarily appointment-based services used by all ages which may make them more
appropriate in neighborhood context than other retail or service uses. Staff feels that, if
approved, the limited approach would accomplish the applicant’s objective without
adding a seemingly arbitrary salon use on its own. Staff does not fully support the text
amendment. If it is adopted the Board of Adjustment may still reject any conditional use,

15




Public
Hearing
3/8/2023

Item 3.

proposal or impose any reasonable conditions based on neighborhood input. Staff
recommends that the Commission discuss the proposed zoning code amendment and
set a public hearing date for formal consideration and recommendation to City Council.

Chad Welsh, 6701 Strayer Road, spoke as the applicant regarding the item, noting that
the proposed business is intended to be more of a makeup and brow salon. Mr. Sevy
noted that he hadn’t been given that clarification. Mr. Welsh stated that he is available
for any questions.

Steven Jordan, 2510 Cottage Row Road, spoke as Mr. Welsh'’s realtor and stated that
the item will still go through Board of Adjustment approval.

Mr. Larson suggested changing the business category to salon instead of hair salon to
avoid making the description so specific.

Ms. Crisman asked for a definition of a defunct institutional building and what it would
apply to. Mr. Sevy explained that it applies to an empty building that is not currently
being used for it's purpose. Ms. Howard clarified that it has to be an institutional use
building such as a church or school.

Mr. Hartley stated that he likes the idea of being able to repurpose buildings that would
otherwise typically stay empty. Ms. Moser agreed with the sentiment.

Mr. Larson made a motion to move the item to public hearing. Ms. Crisman seconded the
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Larson,
Lynch and Moser), and O nays.

The first item of business was a zoning text amendment regarding expanding the list of
potential conditional uses of defunct institutional buildings. Chair Lynch introduced the
item and Mr. Sevy provided background information. He noted that this item was
presented at the February 8 meeting and gave a recap of what was discussed. He
discussed the current uses that are eligible for consideration in a defunct building. He
also covered the pros and cons of repurposing a church for the different uses. The
proposed text amendment would state “Personal service uses limited to salons, shoe
repair, tailoring services, therapy-based services, and photographic studios.” Staff
recommends caution when allowing the possibility of retail services in residential
neighborhoods for the time being and recommends disapproval of the amendment.

Chad Welsh, petitioner (6701 Strayer Road), stated that he feels that projects should be
on a case-by-case basis to allow for more potential projects.

Stephen Jordan, real estate agent for the petitioner, (2510 Cottage Row Road), stated
his support and said that he has spoken to many people in the community and that by
and large the community is in favor of it.

Mr. Hartley stated his support for being more open to repurposing old buildings and
using available space when possible.

Ms. Grybovych asked how the original list of provisions was developed. Mr. Sevy
explained that it was considered in the context of churches and what has been done
with them in other communities. Conditional uses are a newer concept to Cedar Falls
and the goal was to be conservative with the list of uses while still allowing a reasonable
avenue for adaptive reuse. He displayed some of the currently eligible uses.

Mr. Larson feels that the simple change in language is adding something explicitly that
has a similar impact and nature of business to the other ones on the list. He agreed with
Mr. Hartley in his support.

Ms. Crisman stated that she believes that repurposing a building is, if possible, always

16




Item 3.

the best choice when considering the environmental impact and cost of resources.

Ms. Grybovych noted concern with adding such specific uses as opposed to making a
broader category.

Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The
motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Larson, Leeper and
Lynch), and 1 nay (Grybovych).

17




Item 3.

Prepared by: Chris Sevy, Planner |, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, lowa (319) 273-8600

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 26-140. CONDITIONAL USES, OF DIVISION 1,
GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE Ill, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF
CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR
FALLS, IOWA TO ADD CERTAIN PERSONAL SERVICE USES TO THE LIST OF LAND
USES THAT QUALIFY FOR CONDITIONAL USE CONSIDERATION FOR THE ADAPTIVE
RE-USE OF DEFUNCT INSTITUTIONAL BUILDINGS IN RESIDENCE DISTRICTS.

WHEREAS, Section 26-140 of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, adopted in 2021, contains a
list of uses that qualify for conditional use consideration for the adaptive re-use of defunct institutional
buildings on a case-by-case basis as reviewed and approved by the Board of Adjustment, and

WHEREAS, the City received an application seeking a zoning code text amendment to add
“salon” to the list of uses which qualify for conditional use consideration for the adaptive re-use of
defunct institutional buildings; and

WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed (Case TA22-003) and
determined that allowing certain personal service uses to qualify for consideration as a conditional use
to adaptively re-use defunct institutional buildings located in residential zones as reviewed and
approved by the Board of Adjustment, is a reasonable amendment to the zoning code since personal
service uses such as a salon have a similar impact and nature of business to other uses that qualify,
and the repurposing of a building is beneficial to the community and can have a significantly lower
cost and environmental impact compared to new construction. Therefore, the Commission
recommended approval; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR
FALLS, IOWA, THAT:

Section 1: Paragraph (e)(1)a. within Section 26-140. Conditional Uses, within Division 1,
Generally, of Article Ill, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby amended to add an untitled paragraph 6.,
as follows:

6. Personal service uses limited to salons, shoe repair, tailoring services, therapy-based
services, and photographic studios.

INTRODUCED: April 3, 2023
PASSED 15T CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 2"° CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 3R° CONSIDERATION:

ADOPTED:

ATTEST: Robert M. Green, Mayor

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

18




Iltem 4.

8 DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Phone: 319-273-8606

Fax: 319-273-8610

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

Planning & Community Services Division

TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council
FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager
DATE: March 20, 2023
SUBJECT:  Petition from City Council to amend the Downtown Character District (TA22-003)

On July 18", 2022, the City Council held a public hearing on an ordinance to amend the Downtown
Character District zoning regulations recommended unanimously by the Planning and Zoning
Commission at their June 8™ meeting. In effect, this ordinance would have required site plans for
new buildings proposed in the Urban General, Urban General 2, and Storefront frontages to be
reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and approved by the City Council as per the
City Council’s original petition.

After the close of the public hearing the City Council discussed the proposed ordinance and a
motion passed to refer the ordinance back to the Planning and Zoning Commission with a petition
for additional amendments to the zoning ordinance “to include review of any site plan that would
expand the floor plan or where residential is being added, similar to language in Section 26-196,
C.2.b.” The minutes of this discussion are listed below.

Minutes from the July 18t City Council meeting:

It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that an ordinance, amending Chapter 26,
Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Planning & Zoning Commission review of site plans
in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), be passed upon its first consideration. Following
guestions by Councilmembers Harding and Kruse, and responses by City Attorney Rogers and
Planning & Community Services Manager Howard, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by Sires
to petition the Planning & Zoning Commission to include review of any site plan that would expand
the floor plan or where residential is being added, similar to language in Section 26-196, C.2.b.
Following comments and questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, Dunn, Harding and Sires,
and responses by Howard, it was moved by Harding to call the question on the original motion.
Motion failed 3-4, with deBuhr, Kruse, Ganfield and Sires voting Nay. Following comments by
Mayor Green, and questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Dunn
and Schultz, the Mayor put the question on the motion to petition the Planning & Zoning
Commission. Motion carried 4-3, with Dunn, Schultz and Harding voting Nay.

19




Iltem 4.

Direction from Planning and Zoning Commission

At the Commission’s August 10, 2022 meeting, the Commission discussed the petition from the
City Council and directed staff to prepare draft language for consideration at a public hearing on
August 24, 2022.

At their August 24, 2022 meeting, on a vote of 4-5, the Planning and Zoning Commission
recommended denial of the attached amendments to the zoning ordinance. Note: For
context the P&Z minutes from both the original petition from the City Council (where the
Commission recommended approval) and from the revised petition from the City Council (where
the Commission recommended denial) are included below.

Council Action at the September 6, 2022 meeting: At the Council meeting on September 6,
the City Council postponed setting the public hearing date until after Council decided whether to
amend the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance disapproved by the Planning and
Zoning Commission from 2/3 majority to simple majority.

The ordinance amendment regarding the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance
disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission was resolved at the January 3, 2023
Council meeting when the City Council failed to override Mayor’s veto of said ordinance change.

RECOMMENDATION ON POSTPONED ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS: Staff now
recommends that the Council consider the following recommendation of the Planning and Zoning
Commission:

e The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends denial of the petition from the City
Council to require review and approval of site plans by the Planning and Zoning
Commission and the City Council for certain projects in the Downtown Character
District as set forth in the attached red-lined draft.

Note: Due to the disapproval of the proposed amendments by the Planning and Zoning
Commission, it will require 2/3 majority of Council to approve the amendments.

Attachments:
¢ Red-lined draft of the most recent proposed changes to the zoning code per the petition from City Council.
e Proposed Ordinance

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES

Introduction The Commission then considered a zoning text amendment to add a requirement for

03/23/22 Planning and Zoning review of site plans in the CD-DT. Chair Leeper introduced the
item and Ms. Howard provided background information. She explained that some
commission members were not on the commission when the new code was
discussed, so she will be providing some background information again. She
explained that there was concern and frustration with the fact that it seemed as
though a great deal of projects had to come through the commission for approval.
The idea behind the new code was to create more clear and objective standards in
the code, making less reason to have an extra review by the Commission. She
discussed the role of the Commission, which includes planning for the future growth
of the city, making recommendations on legislative matters related to planning and
zoning (amendments to the zoning code, changes to zoning map, etc.) and making

20




Review of
proposed
amendments
5/25/2022

Iltem 4.

recommendations on subdivision of land, including street extensions and proposals
for parks. Review of site plans was not one of the official listed duties and was added
to the code later for certain newer zoning and overlay districts.

Ms. Howard discussed potential options which include:

1. Maintain the code as currently adopted

2. Maintain as currently adopted, but staff provides monthly report to the
Commission on site plans under review.

3. Require new buildings in the UG, UG2 and Storefront frontages to be
reviewed and approved by Planning and Zoning.

4. Require all new buildings in the Downtown Character District to be reviewed
and approved by Planning and Zoning

5. Require all site plans to be reviewed by Planning and Zoning and approved by
City Council as was previously done in the CBD Overlay.

Mr. Larson feels that one of the primary objectives of the new zoning ordinance was
to provide a clear set of rules and make it easier for developers and to potentially
remove an often unnecessary step for the process. He suggested trying out option
two to make sure there is some kind of a review.

Ms. Crisman also likes the second option and stated that she feels a bit discouraged
by how many things have been coming back from council that the commission has
put so much work into. She’s not sure that adding another thing for approval is a
great idea if things that have been worked so hard on are going to come back again.
She likes the idea of staying in the loop and checking in on the work already done.

Mr. Holst feels that the new zoning process is a lot more efficient and less subjective
so it is easier to check things through. The only thing that will be unfortunate to lose is
the chance for public input. He also said that Planning and Zoning is a check for staff.

Mr. Leeper agreed with the comments from the Commission and stated that it is a
tough place to be. He likes the second option and asked if there is a mechanism that
would allow the planning and zoning commission to pull an item in for approval.

Mr. Hartley feels that it would be nice to have an overview for projects, maybe in the
form of a monthly report so that the Commission can decide if they should take a
closer look. His concern isn’t just with the Commission not being able to see what is
going to happen, but to give the public a chance to comment as well.

Ms. Howard stated that there needs to be a clear path created to deciding on whether
a project needs to be considered by the Commission. After further conversation, the
general direction from the Commission to go with a mixture of options two and three.

The Commission then considered Zoning Text Amendment and review of certain site
plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT). Chair Leeper introduced the item
and Ms. Howard provided background information with regard to previously
discussed potential options for the review of site plans in the Downtown Character
District. She discussed the proposed code language and showed a rendering of the
frontage designations within the downtown area where P&Z and Council review of
site plans would be required if these changes are adopted. She displayed the
clarified/updated code language being proposed and explained what those changes
mean and asked if there were any questions. Staff recommended that the
Commission discuss the draft text amendment, provide direction, and consider setting
a date of public hearing for the June 8 meeting.

21




Public hearing and
Vote
6/8/2022

Introduction of
second petition
8/10/2022

Iltem 4.

Ms. Saul commented that the code changes proposed reflect what the Commission
discussed and asked for. There was brief discussion with regard to different aspects
of the changes.

A public hearing was set for the Commission meeting on June 8, 2022.

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a zoning text amendment
with regard to review of certain site plans in the CD-DT District. Chair Leeper
introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background information. She explained
that it is currently on the table to change the zoning code to require new buildings in
the Urban General (UG), Urban General 2 (UG2) and Storefront frontages to be
reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission. She displayed a rendering of the
Character District and the frontage destinations where the proposed amendments
would apply. She offered to answer any questions about the proposed code changes
and recommended that that Commission open the public hearing, discuss and make
a recommendation to City Council on the proposed amendments.

Ms. Saul asked about the process if a residence is going to add square footage. Ms.
Howard stated that this text amendment only addresses new buildings.

Mr. Holst clarified that this amendment addresses concerns about new construction
and public input. Mr. Leeper added that this is a check and balance for significant
projects in the area. Mr. Larson noted that the amendment could be revisited after a
year to see if it is still necessary.

Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion. The
motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst,
Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays.

The first item of business was a zoning text amendment for reviewing certain site
plans in the CD-DT zoning district. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard
provided background information. She explained that in March the Commission
considered various options for amending the code to have site plans reviewed at the
Planning and Zoning meeting and approved by Council. Direction was given that the
Commission is interested in reviewing site plans for new buildings in the Urban
General and Urban General 2 and Storefront Frontages. In May staff brought forward
draft language for Commission approval and a public hearing was held on June 8.
City Council set a public hearing date for July 18 and Council approved a motion to
refer the ordinance back to the Commission to consider amending the zoning
ordinance “to include review of any site plan that would expand the floor plan or
where residential is being added, similar to language in Section 26-196C.2.b.” Staff
recommends that the Commission discuss and provide direction to staff regarding the
petition from City council.

Mr. Leeper asked what has changed since the last time the Commission voted
unanimously on the item. Ms. Howard stated that she doesn’t believe anything has
changed. Council just felt that they would like to see further review by the
Commission and Council. Mr. Holst stated that he would be okay with the added
review if that's what Council wants.

22




Public hearing and
Vote
8/24/2022

Iltem 4.

Ms. Crisman disagreed stating that the code is written the way it is makes
requirements clear. The Commission spending more time reviewing more things is
not a good use of time as there are many projects that will be held up. Ms. Saul
agreed with Mr. Holst.

Mr. Leeper stated that he has heard comments in the field that the process has been
too complex and takes too long. People want to know specifically and clearly what
can and can’t be done. If the review process takes too much time it costs developers
a lot of extra money.

Ms. Saul stated that she doesn’t believe that parking issues have been fully
addressed. Ms. Crisman felt that the code spells out what the parking expectations
are so any added review is just adding a step. The review would not be needed if the
code is followed.

Mr. Holst asked what Council specifically needs from the Commission. Ms. Howard
stated that the Commission would need to vote on their petition for the changes. Staff
would prepare an ordinance amendment per council direction, set a public hearing
and the Commission could vote yes or no to the changes. If the Commission votes
yes, Council would need majority vote for approval. If the Commission votes no, it
would trigger a council supermajority vote on amendment. Staff will need to draft out
what City Council is requesting for a vote by the Commission. Public hearing is
scheduled for the August 24, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.

The first item of business was a zoning text amendment regarding certain site plans
in the CD-DT district. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided
background information and explained that this is a public hearing regarding a petition
from City Council to require P&Z review of site plans that would expand the floor plan
or where residential is being added, similar to language in Section 26-196C.2.b. She
showed the draft of the new language being proposed per the Council’s petition. Staff
recommends that the Commission discuss the proposed amendments to the Zoning
Code and make a recommendation to City Council.

Ms. Moser stated that she feels this is putting the Commission in an awkward position
as it was sent back to them after they had agreed on this item unanimously in an
effort to streamline the process. To change it would add an extra layer to the process.

Ms. Grybovich added that no planning documents are perfect and they have
discussed the ability to revisit the item down the road to allow the Commission to see
if changes should be made. A lot of work has gone into this document and she feels
that they should move forward with what the Commission has proposed.

Mr. Hartley stated that he has wrestled with creating a process that is efficient and
easy to move through, but he also likes the idea of transparency and the ability for
citizens to see everything laid out for them to see what is being proposed. He asked
how much comes to the Commission currently with regard to site plans throughout
the City. Ms. Howard stated that there are a number of zones where site plans are
not reviewed through the Commission and City Council (i.e., R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, C-1,
C-2, etc.) Typically, the zones that are reviewed are planned developments that have
a master plan associated with them (i.e., RP, HWY-1, MU, and other Overlay Zones,
such as the previous CBD Overlay).

Mr. Holst feels that the positive side is the consideration of public transparency and
can see the merit to adding the review. He believes there is a good deal of public

23




Iltem 4.

interest and feels that if this is what the Council would like to see he is comfortable
with their recommendation. Ms. Saul stated she agrees with Mr. Holst.

Mr. Larson feels that the proposed language is a good middle ground and would
support some additional oversight as long as the end goal is the intent to remove it
from the equation. He doesn’t believe the Commission needs to see everything that
comes through and suggested that if it is amended to create more review there
should be an agreement to revisit this in a year, if the process is too onerous.

Ms. Crisman stated her concern that once amended the ordinance will not be
changed in the future to reduce unnecessary oversight of site plans. She doesn’t feel
that it has been sent back to the Commission from a concern for the public. She
believes that the Commission has made every effort to make the code clear and it is
P&Z’s responsibility to focus on planning for the future, such as improvements to the
code for College Hill and other areas that need attention rather than on minor site
plan reviews. She stated that staff is very capable and excellent at reviewing site
plans. The Commission had agreed previously that they were mostly just curious to
see how it was working, not that there was concern or need for additional public
comment. She doesn’t feel that the public is worried about adding additional square
footage to an existing building. She would like to move forward so the Commission
can focus on other matters that need their attention. Mr. Larson agreed with the
majority of these sentiments.

Mr. Holst stated that he could understand that this is a big change. He disagreed that
the public doesn’t care about projects like these. Mr. Larson noted that the only way
that the Commission can decide on how the change will work is to make a decision
and give it time to try out the process to see if there are any shortcomings that need
to be taken into account.

Ms. Crisman stated that she doesn’t believe that this is taking away the public’s
ability to provide comments. Every meeting has time set aside for public comment
where they could share their thoughts and ideas.

Mr. Holst noted that people won’t have a chance to comment on projects that aren’t
coming through Planning and Zoning. Mr. Leeper stated that the reason that the
projects aren’t coming through the Commission is because the rules in the code are
clear so it would not be necessary. He feels that this is more of an issue of process
and that the Commission spent a lot of time trying to get this right. The previous
recommendation from the Commission to focus additional review only for new
buildings was approved unanimously and he is wondering how long these minor
changes to the code will continue to come back from the Council.

Ms. Grybovich asked what happens next in the process. Ms. Howard stated that at
this time the Commission should decide to recommend for or against the proposed
changes per the Council petition. If denial is recommended, it will require 2/3 of the
Council to pass the ordinance. If approval is recommended a simple majority of
Council will be required to pass the ordinance.

Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the proposed language changes. Ms. Saul
seconded the motion. The motion was denied with 4 ayes (Hartley, Holst, Larson and
Saul) and 5 nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Leeper, Lynch and Moser).

24




Note that in the red-lined version of the proposed code amendments, the strike-through
notation indicates language to be deleted. Underlined text is new language added. All
other language is unchanged and is included to provide context for the changes
proposed. The highlighted section is the language that was amended per City Council’s
petition for further revisions forwarded after the public hearing at City Council on July 18,
2022.

Amend Section 26-191C., Applicability, as follows:
C. Applicability and Development Review

1. Where an adopted Regulating Plan is shown on the zoning map, these Character District
standards immediately apply at the parcel level.

Section-26-36-through-Section-26-39: All applications for development or redevelopment
within a Character District shall be reviewed and approved according to the procedures
set forth in Section 26-36 through Section 26-39. Applications shall be administratively
reviewed and approved, except for the following:

a. Site plans for new buildings on property designated as Urban General, Urban General
2, or Storefront on an adopted Regulating Plan.

b. Any plan for expanding the gross floor area of an existing building on property
designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or_ Storefront on an adopted
Regulating Plan.

c. Any plan for one or more additional dwelling units within an existing building on
property designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront on an adopted
Regulating Plan.

3. With regard to any of the exceptions listed in subparagraphs a., b., and c., above, the
Zoning Administrator, in consultation with the Zoning Review Committee and Technical
Review Committee, shall prepare and forward a report along with the site plan and
supporting documents to the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council for review
and approval according to procedures set forth in Section 26-36(d), Review and Decision-

making.

Amend Section 26-36 and 26-37, as follows:

Sec. 26-36. Administrative—Determination Site Plan Review, Proportionate Compliance
Determinations, and Minor Adjustments

Iltem 4.

25




Proportionate nla
Compliance

Applications and submittal materials required for site plan review, proportionate compliance
determinations, and minor adjustments under this Chapter shall be submitted on forms and
in such numbers as required by the City. The applicable filing fee shall be paid at the time
the application is filed. Additional fees may be required for re-submittals. Fees are
determined by resolution of the City Council.

(b) APPLICATION COMPLETENESS REVIEW

(1) Applications shall not be processed until all fees and materials have been submitted and
are deemed sufficient complete in form and content such that recommendations, as
required, and a decision may be made on the application by the Zoning Administrator,
or other decision-making body, as specified in this chapter. The Zoning Administrator
shall determine application sufficieney-completeness.

(2) If an application is deemed irsutficient incomplete, the Zoning Administrator shall inform
the appllcant of the specmc submlttal requwements that have not been met. IFhe—Zenmg

apwieanf&

(3) If an application is deemed insufficient incomplete, the applicant must resolve and
resubmit the materials required to complete the application within 30 days of the date
informed of the insufficiency of the application.

a. An insufficient incomplete application that has not been revised to meet the
completeness requirements shall expire on the 30" day. An expired application
shall be returned to the applicant along with any original documents submitted in
support of the application.

b. The City, at its discretion, may retain the application fee paid. Once an application
has expired, the application must be resubmitted in full, including payment of the
application fee.

(¢) REVIEW, REFERRAL, AND RECOMMENDATION

(1) Upon submission of an application, the Zoning Administrator shall review the application
and accompanying documentation to determine whether the information included in the
application is sufficient to evaluate the application against the approval criteria of the
procedure or permit requested.

(2) The Zoning Administrator may refer any application to the Zoning Review Committee
(ZRC) or Technical Review Committee (TRC) for review and recommendation.

(d) REVIEW AND DECISION-MAKING

(1) Fhe—Zoning—Administrator—shallreview—the Applications shall _be reviewed for

conformance with all applicable provisions of this Code ehapter.
(2) To be approved, an application shall be fully consistent with the standards of this ehapter
Code unless a minor adjustment is concurrently approved to allow specified deviation

from appllcable standards An—adm+n+strawe—appreval—may—melade—mstmeﬂens—and

(3) Except as specified in paragraph (4) below, after consultation with the TRC and ZRC, as
applicable, the Zoning Administrator shall approve or deny the-applications for site plan
review and minor adjustments and shall make determinations regarding proportionate
compliance and provide written notification of the decision to the applicant. If an
application is denied, the written notification shall include the reasons for denial.
Administrative decisions are appealable pursuant to Section 26-62.

Iltem 4.

26




Iltem 4.

(4) Eor any site plan that requires Planning and Zoning Commission and/or City Council
review and approval, as set forth in this Chapter, the Zoning Administrator shall prepare
a_staff report and recommendation based on the approval criteria, standards and
requirements of this Code, and any other applicable policies and requlations. The staff
report and recommendation shall be forwarded to the Planning and Zoning Commission
for its review and recommendation to the City Council. If the Planning and Zoning
Commission recommends denial, the site plan shall not be forwarded to the City Council,
unless so requested by the applicant in writing. After consideration of the staff report and
the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation, the City Council may approve,
approve with conditions, or deny the site plan. If a site plan is denied, the Planning and
Zoning Commission and/or City Council, as applicable, shall state the reasons for denial.

Sec. 26-37. Site Plan
(a) APPLICABILITY

The purpose of this section is to set forth the procedures and criteria for review and approval
of site plans, which shall include when referenced in this Chapter, site development plans,
development plans, or similar. Site plans are technical documents that illustrate how the
structure(s), layout of an area, and proposed uses meet the requirements of this chapter and
any other applicable ordinances, standards, regulations, and with all previously approved
plans applicable to the property.

(b) AUTHORITY
A site plan is required for:

(1) Character Districts

a. Any application for development in a character district.

b. All requests for structures, architectural elements or accessory structures (front
porch, front yard fence) at or forward of the required building line, and accessory or
temporary uses; however, for minor accessory structures not located forward of the
required building line, such as sheds, fences, or decks, the site plan shall only be
required to show the location of the proposed structure or addition in relation to
property boundaries, required setbacks, easements, and terrain changes as more
fully detailed in this Code;

(2) Fraditional-ZoneDistricts-All other Zoning Districts

a. Any application for a commercial, industrial, institutional, or multi-unit residential
dwelling project development;

b. Any application for development requiring site plan review, site development plan
review, development plan review, plan review, or similar _review as set forth
elsewhere in this chapter.

(c) APPLICATION PROCEDURES

(1) A pre-application meeting with the Zoning Review Committee (ZRC) is required prior to
the submission of a site plan application for development in a character district. Pre-
application meetings are optional and encouraged for all other applications.

(2) The applicant shall submit the site plan application to the Planning and Community
Services Division. Application submittal deadlines and requirements shall be established
on submittal forms available from the Planning and Community Services Division and on
the City’s website.

27




(d) DECISION CRITERIA
The site plan shall be reviewed against the following criteria:

(1) The site plan is consistent with all applicable adopted plans and paolicies;
(2) The site plan is consistent with any prior approvals, including any conditions that may
have been placed on such approvals; and
(3) The site plan conforms with all applicable requirements of this Code the-Cede—of
Ordinaneces, or with all applicable requirements as modified by a—+regquestfora an
approved minor adjustment.

() EFFECT
(1) Approved site plans shall be binding upon the property owner(s) and their successors
and assigns.

(3) No building, structure, use or other element of the approved site plan shall be modified
without amending the site plan, unless it is determined by the City that such modification
will not require an amended site plan.

(4) All buildings, structures and uses shall remain in conformance with the approved site
plan or be subject to enforcement action.

() POST-APPROVAL ACTIONS

(1) Expiration

a. Approved site plans shall expire one year after approval if the applicable permit(s)
for the proposed development a-building-permit-has have not been issued. erthe
approved—use—established: In the event that the documents expire due to the
passage of this time period, new site plan review documents must be submitted for
approval in the same manner as an original application for development review.

b. For good cause, an extension not to exceed one year may be granted by the Zoning
Administrator. Requests for an extension must be in writing stating the reasons for
such request.

(2) Modifications to Site plans

The holder of an approved site plan may request an adjustment to the document, or the

conditions of approval, by submitting either an application for minor adjustment or an

amended site plan, whichever is appropriate, to the Zoning Administrator. An amended
site plan shall be filed and processed in accordance with the procedures specified in
this Chapter for the an initial site plan submittal, or as otherwise specified in this Chapter.

Iltem 4.

28




Prepared by: Karen Howard, P&CS Manager, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, lowa (319) 273-8600

Iltem 4.

ORDINANCE NO. 3025

AN ORDINANCE TO CLARIFY TERMINOLOGY AND ESTABLISH
NEW PROCEDURES FOR REVIEW OF SITE PLANS FOR
DEVELOPMENT IN THE DOWNTOWN CHARACTER DISTRICT
BY AMENDING SECTION 26-191, INTRODUCTION TO
CHARACTER DISTRICTS AND DEFINITIONS, UNDER DIVISION
2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, ARTICLE I1I, DISTRICTS AND
DISTRICT REGULATIONS; AND SECTION 26-36, SITE PLAN
REVIEW, PROPORTIONATE COMPLIANCE DETERMINATIONS,
AND MINOR ADJUSTMENTS, AND SECTION 26-37, SITE PLAN,
UNDER DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, UNDER ARTICLE II,
ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT; ALL WITHIN
CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

WHEREAS, the Downtown Character District zoning regulations, adopted November 1,
2021, established procedures for the review of site plans for development within the Downtown
Character District; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has petitioned the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning
Commission to consider requiring Planning and Zoning Commission Review of development
proposals in the Downtown Character District rather than administrative review and approval,
and

WHEREAS, after a public hearing on June 8, 2022, the Planning and
Zoning Commission recommended approval of zoning code amendments to clarify the procedures
for review of site plans in the Downtown Character District and to require Planning and Zoning
Commission review and City Council approval of site plans for new buildings in the Urban
General, Urban General 2, and Storefront frontages, with all other site plans to be reviewed
administratively (TA22-003); and

WHEREAS, after a public hearing on July 18, 2022, the City Council passed a motion to refer
the ordinance back to the Planning and Zoning Commission with a petition for additional
amendments to the zoning ordinance to include review of any site plan that would expand the floor
plan or where residential is being added; and

WHEREAS, after a public hearing on August 24, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission
recommended denial the July 18" petition from the City Council;

WHEREAS, due to the disapproval of the proposed petition by the Planning and Zoning
Commission, this ordinance will require 2/3 majority vote to pass.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT:

29




Section 1: Subsection C, Applicability, of Section 26-191, Introduction to Character Districts
and Definitions, within Division 2 Specific Districts, of Article 111, Districts and District
Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:

C. Applicability and Development Review

1.

Where an adopted Regulating Plan is shown on the zoning map, these Character
District standards immediately apply at the parcel level.

2. All applications for development or redevelopment within a Character District shall be

reviewed and approved according to the procedures set forth in Section 26-36 through

Section 26-39. Applications shall be administratively reviewed and approved, except

for the following:

a. Site plans for new buildings on property designated as Urban General, Urban
General 2, or Storefront on an adopted Regulating Plan.

b. Any plan for expanding the gross floor area of an existing building on property
designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront on an adopted
Regulating Plan.

c. Any plan for one or more additional dwelling units within an existing building on
property designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront on an
adopted Regulating Plan.

3. With regard to any of the exceptions listed in subparagraphs a, b, and c, above, the

Zoning Administrator, in consultation with the Zoning Review Committee and Technical
Review Committee, shall prepare and forward a report along with the site plan and
supporting documents to the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council for
review and approval according to procedures set forth in Section 26-36(d), Review and
Decision-making.

Section 2: Section 26-36, within Division 1, Generally, of Article I1, Administration and
Enforcement, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:

Sec. 26-36. Site Plan Review, Proportionate Compliance Determinations, and Minor

(@)

Adjustments

GENERAL APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

Applications and submittal materials required for site plan review, proportionate
compliance determinations, and minor adjustments under this Chapter shall be
submitted on forms and in such numbers as required by the City. The applicable filing
fee shall be paid at the time the application is filed. Additional fees may be required for
re-submittals. Fees are determined by resolution of the City Council.

APPLICATION COMPLETENESS REVIEW

(1) Applications shall not be processed until all fees and materials have been submitted
and are deemed complete in form and content such that recommendations, as
required, and a decision may be made on the application by the Zoning
Administrator, or other decision-making body, as specified in this chapter. The
Zoning Administrator shall determine application completeness.

(2) If an application is deemed incomplete, the Zoning Administrator shall notify the
applicant of the specific submittal requirements that have not been met.

(3) If an application is deemed incomplete, the applicant must resubmit the materials
required to complete the application within 30 days of the date notified of the
insufficiency of the application.

Iltem 4.

30




a. An incomplete application that has not been revised to meet the completeness
requirements shall expire on the 30" day. An expired application shall be
returned to the applicant along with any original documents submitted in support
of the application.

b. The City, at its discretion, may retain the application fee paid. Once an
application has expired, the application must be resubmitted in full, including
payment of the application fee.

(c) REVIEW, REFERRAL, AND RECOMMENDATION

(1) Upon submission of an application, the Zoning Administrator shall review the
application and accompanying documentation to determine whether the information
included in the application is sufficient to evaluate the application against the
approval criteria of the procedure or permit requested.

(2) The Zoning Administrator may refer any application to the Zoning Review
Committee (ZRC) or Technical Review Committee (TRC) for review and
recommendation.

(d) REVIEW AND DECISION-MAKING

(1) Applications shall be reviewed for conformance with all applicable provisions of this
Code.

(2) To be approved, an application shall be fully consistent with the standards of this
Code, unless a minor adjustment is concurrently approved to allow specified
deviation from applicable standards.

(3) Except as specified in paragraph (4) below, after consultation with the TRC and
ZRC, as applicable, the Zoning Administrator shall approve or deny applications for
site plan review and minor adjustments and shall make determinations regarding
proportionate compliance and provide written notification of the decision to the
applicant. If an application is denied, the written notification shall include the
reasons for denial. Administrative decisions are appealable pursuant to Section 26-
62.

(4) For any site plan that requires Planning and Zoning Commission and/or City Council
review and approval, as set forth in this Chapter, the Zoning Administrator shall
prepare a staff report and recommendation based on the approval criteria,
standards and requirements of this Code, and any other applicable policies and
regulations. The staff report and recommendation shall be forwarded to the
Planning and Zoning Commission for its review and recommendation to the City
Council. If the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends denial, the site plan
shall not be forwarded to the City Council, unless so requested by the applicant in
writing. After consideration of the staff report and the Planning and Zoning
Commission’s recommendation, the City Council may approve, approve with
conditions, or deny the site plan. If a site plan is denied, the Planning and Zoning
Commission and/or City Council, as applicable, shall state the reasons for denial.

Section 3: Section 26-37, Site Plan, within Division 1, Generally, of Article Il, Administration and
Enforcement, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:

Sec. 26-37. Site Plan
(a) APPLICABILITY

The purpose of this section is to set forth the procedures and criteria for review and
approval of site plans, which shall include when referenced in this Chapter, site
development plans, development plans, or similar. Site plans are technical documents
that illustrate how the structure(s), layout of an area, and proposed uses meet the

Iltem 4.

31




requirements of this chapter and any other applicable ordinances, standards,
regulations, and with all previously approved plans applicable to the property.

AUTHORITY
A site plan is required for:

(1) Character Districts
a. Any application for development in a character district.

b. All requests for structures, architectural elements or accessory structures (e.g.,
front porch, front yard fence) at or forward of the required building line, and
accessory or temporary uses; however, for minor accessory structures not
located forward of the required building line, such as sheds, fences, or decks,
the site plan shall only be required to show the location of the proposed structure
or addition in relation to property boundaries, required setbacks, easements, and
terrain changes as more fully detailed in this Code.

(2) All Other Zoning Districts
a. Any application for commercial, industrial, institutional, or multi-unit residential

development;

b. Any application for development requiring site plan review, site development plan
review, development plan review, plan review, or similar review as set forth
elsewhere in this chapter.

APPLICATION PROCEDURES

(1) A pre-application meeting with the Zoning Review Committee (ZRC) is required prior
to the submission of a site plan application for development in a character district.
Pre-application meetings are optional but encouraged for all other applications.

(2) The applicant shall submit the site plan application to the Planning and Community
Services Division. Application submittal deadlines and requirements shall be
established on submittal forms available from the Planning and Community Services
Division and on the City’s website.

DECISION CRITERIA

The site plan shall be reviewed against the following criteria:

(1) The site plan is consistent with all applicable adopted plans and policies; and

(2) The site plan is consistent with any prior approvals, including any conditions that
may have been placed on such approvals; and

(3) The site plan conforms with all applicable requirements of this Code, or with all
applicable requirements as modified by an approved minor adjustment.

EFFECT

(1) Approved site plans shall be binding upon the property owner(s) and their
successors and assigns.

(2) No building, structure, use or other element of the approved site plan shall be
modified without amending the site plan, unless it is determined by the City that such
modification will not require an amended site plan.

(3) All buildings, structures and uses shall remain in conformance with the approved site
plan or be subject to enforcement action.

POST-APPROVAL ACTIONS

(1) Expiration

a. Approved site plans shall expire one year after approval if the applicable
permit(s) for the proposed development have not been issued. In the event that
the documents expire due to the passage of this time period, new site plan
review documents